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Notice: Sec. 237(a)}2)(A)D), I&N Act [§ US.C. § 1227(R)2)(A)] -
Convicied of aggravated felony

APPLICATION: Termination

The Departmem of Homeland Secuntjr {DHS} appea]s the ]rmm gmhnn Judgc 8 decmmn, ﬁated
Augnst 22, 2005, terminating removal pmuaedmgs agauutthe respondent, The appeal will be dmmmad

Thia IDHS charged the respendent with being removable as analien comvicted of an aggravated felony
a5 defined under section 101(a){43XF) of the Tmmigration and Nationality Act, 8 U.S.C. § 1101({a){43)F).
Specifically, the DHS asserted that the respondent’s convictions on August 4, 2003, for aggravated .
vehicular homicide in violation of Ohio Revised Code Annotated § 2903.06(A), and two counts of
vehicular assanlt in violation of Ohio Revised Code Annotated § 2003.08(A)(2) and sentence of 2 years
incarceration constituted crimes of violence as defined under 18 U.S.C. § 16. Intesponse, the respondent
moved to terminate proceedings argiing that the comvictions did not constitute ctimes of vielence and, thus,
the respondent was not removeble as an alien convicted of an appravated felony under section
237@)(2) (A} ofthe Act. Thereafier, the Immigration Judge found that the respendent’s convietions did
not constitute crimes of violence and he terminated removal proceedings. As aresult, the DHS fileda

timely appeal arguing that the Iimsmigration Judge’s decislon is emneausandﬁmtpmcaadmgs should be
teinstated.

The respondent was convicted of three separaté offenses in violation of Ohio Revised Code Annotated

§§ 2903.06{A) and 2903.08({A)(2). The respondent’s conviction under section 2903.06(A) is for
aggravated vehieujar homicide and it is a divisible statute. The statuteis divided into separate sections

' reguiring no mens rea, anegligent mens rea, or arcckless mens rea in order to estabiish culpability.
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Where a statute under which an alien was convicted is divisible, we look to the record of conviction, and
otherdociiments admissible asevidence in proving s criminal conviction, to determine whether the specific
offense of which the alien was convicted will sustain a ground of removability under section
23K (2)(A)Gil) of the Act. The record of conviction includes the charging document, plea apreement, a
verdict or judgment of conviction, & record of sentence, or a plea colloquy transcript, See Matter of

Vargas-Sarmiento, 23 J&N Dec. 651 (BIA 2004); see aiso Matter of Sweetser, 22 1&N Dec. -

709 (BIA 1959).

Indictment which specifically provides that the respondent recklessly caused the death of the vietim,
Likewise, the conviction records relating to the comvictions under section 2503.08(a)(2) relate to counts
4 and 6 of the Indictment which both specifically provide that the respondent recklessiy caused serions
" physical harm to the victims, As a result, all the convictions are based on a mental state requiring
recklessness,

This case arisez within the jurisdiction of the United States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Cirenit.
However, the Sixth Circuithas not addressed whether & conviction foraggraveted vehicular homicide or
vehicular asssult, with areckless mens req, is sufficient to constitnte a crime of violence as defined under
18U.8.C. § 16. Likewise, the Supreme Courtin Leocal v, Asheroff, 543 U.5. 1 (2004), did not address
whether 8 mens req of recklessness was sufficient to constitute 2 erime of violence, Thns, in immigration

 cases arising within tireuifs that have not yet had occasion to considerthis question, we will apply the

standards adepted by the majority of the eircuit conrts. See Maiter of Yamez, 23 1&N Dec. 390,391
(BIA. 2002), :

The United States Cour{ of Appeals for the Third Circuit, in Oyebanjiv. Gonzales, 418 £3d 260 (3d

Cir. 2005}, recently held that vehicular homicide requiring a mens rea of recklessness did not constitute
acrime of violence as defined under 18 U.8.C. §16. The Third Circuit Court of Appeals relied onthe
Supreme Court's decision in Lescal v, Asheroft, supra, indicating that “sccidental” conduct (which would
seern to melude reckless conduct) is not enough to qualify as a crime of violence. Additionally, the Third
Circuitrelied onthe Supreme Court’s reasoning that because 8 U.S.C. § 1181(k) identifies crimes of
violenee separately from any injury causing driving under the influence crime, then infury causing reckless
driving offenses are not crimes of violence, See Oyebanyiv. Gonzales, supra at 264, Likewise, the

United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cirenit, in Lara-Cazares v. Gonzales, 408 F.3d 1217 (9th

Clir. 2005), held that gross vehicular manslaughter while intoxicated did not constitate & crime of violence
and also relied on the Supreme Court’s analysisin Leocal v, Asheraft, supra. The United States Court
of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit has addressed the issuc in Bejarano-Urrutia v. Gonzales, 413 F.3d
444 {4th Cir, 2005), and the court held that an alien’s conviction for involuntary manslavghter was nota
crime of violence, Specifically, the Fousth Cireuit Court found, relying on Leocal v, Asherofi, supra, and.
- Jobsenv. Ashcroft, 326 F.3d 367, 373 (2d Cir, 2003}, that a conviction for involuniary manslanghter
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Wwhich required amental state of recklessness did
Vargas-Duran, 356 F.3d 598 (5th Cir, 3004), the United States Court of Appeals forthe Fifth Cireuit
determined that the respondent’s mﬂvictf'on for intoxication assanltwasnot a crime of violence because
it did not require intentional vse of force, Therefore, the necessary mens rea would be one of intent.
- Likewise, the Second Cirenit Court of Appeals, in Johson v Asherafl, 326 F. 3d 367 (24 Cir. 2003),
found that manslaudhter in the second dégres for recklessly causing death was nota erime ofvialence
because 18 11.8.C. § 16(b) contemplated the intentional use of force. Specifically, the Second Circuit
stated that “section 16(b) contemplaies only insemtiorial conduct and refersonly tothose offenses in which

there jga subgtantial likelihood that the tor will intentionally employ physical force.” IZat 373,
Asguch, the Immigration Judge’s conclubion that the respondent’s convictions for aggravated vehicular

hotnicide and vehicular asssult, requiring s mens req ofrecklessness, donot constitute ceimes of violence
asdefined under 18 U0.8.C. § 16 isnoterheons, Co

temoval proceedings was not in error. ‘

ORDER: The DHS’ appeal is disui:issed.

FOR THE BOARD . .

notconstitute a crime of violence, In Unifed States v

nsequently, the Immigration Judge’s terminaionof
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